OCTOBER 2017



Texas Army National Guard Federal Tuition Assistance GoArmyEd Reference Guide

www.goarmyed.com

UNOFFICIAL



This unofficial guide was created to centralize GoArmyEd (GAE) information and to assist you with navigating the GoArmyEd portal. To access additional Headquarters Army Continuing Education System (HQ ACES) reference documents and instructional videos, visit <u>www.GoArmyEd.com</u> and review the <u>GoArmyEd Assistance Center</u> or select "View Reference Documents" in the GoArmyEd Training Resources section.

PLEASE NOTE: The Army Tuition Assistance benefit is officially titled, Army Tuition

Assistance. Most states offer a National Guard tuition assistance program; therefore, the Texas Army National Guard refers to the Army Tuition Assistance program as <u>Federal Tuition Assistance</u>



(to differentiate between state and federal (Army) tuition assistance). The program is referenced as 'Tuition Assistance' throughout GoArmyEd and as Federal Tuition Assistance/Tuition Assistance throughout this handbook.

To apply or learn more about the Texas Army National Guard (TXARNG) State Tuition Assistance Program, review

https://tmd.texas.gov/state-tuition-assistance-program



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Your Federal Tuition Assistance Benefit	Page 4
Federal Tuition Assistance (FTA) Eligibility	Page 4
Setting up your GoArmyEd.com Account	Page 5
Federal Tuition Assistance Request Timelines	Page 5
Request Federal TA and Enroll in a Class	Page 6
Upload a document in GoArmyEd (GAE) eFile	Page 8
Submit a Federal TA Application Request on GoArmyEd	Page 8
What happens After I Submit my FTA Application	Page 12
Print Your TA Authorization Form	Page 13
When is the Army Going to Pay My School	Page 13
How will My Grade Get Posted in GAE	Page 14
FTA Successful Grade Criteria	Page 14
Dropping a Course for State Emergency Duty (SED)/ Military Reasons	Page 14
Drop a Course for Personal Reasons	Page 15
Change Home School and Degree Name in GAE	Page 15
Student Agreement and Course Planner Requirements	Page 15
How to Use the Course Planner: Step-by-Step Instructions	Page 16
Resolve "Time in Service" Hold: Joint Service Transcript (JST)	Page 17
Reset GAE Password	Page 18
GoArmyEd Assistance	Page 18
TXARNG Education and Incentives Assistance	Page 19

Your Federal Tuition Assistance Benefit

The Army will pay 100% of tuition costs up to the Department of Defense (DoD) \$250 per semester hour cap. All Soldiers are authorized up to 16 semester hours of Federal Tuition Assistance (FTA) funded courses per fiscal year. The federal fiscal year is 01 October – 30 September.

School fee charges, of any type, are no longer eligible for FTA funding.

Current Army policy limits FTA to **130 semester hours of undergraduate** credit or baccalaureate degree, whichever comes first and **39 semester hours of graduate** credit or master's degree, whichever comes first. FTA cannot be used toward professional degrees, e.g. PhD, MD, or JD. <u>Schools must be approved in GoArmyEd to receive FTA.</u>

****Transition Certificate Policy**: The Army provides <u>an additional</u> 21 semester hour (SH) allocation intended to help all Soldiers update or gain new skills to enhance post-service transition. The policy applies to all Soldiers, to include those who have already used undergraduate and graduate semester hour allocations, by providing up to 21 SHs to earn a Transition Certificate. The certificate programs that exceed 21 SHs must be self-funded beyond 21 SHs. Enlisted Soldiers must be within three years from their ETS eligibility and Commissioned Officers must be able to complete the 2-yr Active Duty/4-yr Reserve Duty Service Obligation.

FAQ: Can I use FTA for a certificate program if I do not qualify for the transition certificate?

Answer: Yes. Soldiers desiring to earn a certificate, but who are not planning on transitioning out of the Army (or are not within three years of ETS), may still use FTA to earn a certificate (up to 21 SHs); however, these Soldiers may not request FTA for a *Transition Certificate* within **five years** of completing a previous certificate. Additionally, Soldiers are only authorized one *Transition Certificate* in their Army career.

Federal Tuition Assistance (FTA) Eligibility:

FTA is authorized for Active Duty Soldiers, AGR Soldiers pursuant to Title 10 and Title 32, and drilling Reserve Component Soldiers coded as "satisfactory participant." Soldiers must have one year of service <u>after</u> successful completion of Initial Military Training (IMT) or Basic Officer Leaders Course (BOLC) to receive FTA and Tip: Got a Question? Contact the GoArmyEd helpdesk or log in and submit a GAE helpdesk ticket <u>here</u>:

must have sufficient time in-service to complete all courses. Soldiers must complete ten (10) years of service prior to working on a graduate degree *if FTA was used to pay for any portion of the undergraduate degree*.

Soldiers flagged under provisions of AR 600-8-2, Reserve Officers' Training Corps (ROTC) scholarship recipients (tuition or housing), or Green to Gold Program participants, are prohibited from using FTA.

The GoArmyEd "<u>Statement of</u> <u>Understanding</u>" is digitally signed in your goarmyed.com account and <u>does not</u> require your commander's signature. Soldiers must submit all FTA supporting documents, inquires, and FTA request through the goarmyed.com portal. The Texas Army National Guard Education Services Specialist will document all GoArmyEd correspondence in GoArmyEd and email Soldiers through the GoArmyEd portal. Please do not email or fax your GoArmyEd documents/FTA Request to our office; you will manage your entire FTA account through goarmyed.com.

Setting up your GoArmyEd.com Account

- Visit www.goarmyed.com (or click picture)
- Select "Create/Activate Account"
- Complete the required information to create a base-role GoArmyEd (GAE) account which establishes your GoArmyEd username and password. The base-role account will grant you access to the GoArmyEd Assistance Center, instructional videos and training, GAE helpdesk support, VIA decision tool, on-duty classes, and testing. Note: The Education Services Specialist will frequently communicate with you through email; therefore, we recommend using a personal email account for GoArmyEd communication.

To request TA-eligible access and register for college classes, please complete the following additional steps:

- 1. Log in to www.goarmyed.com using your username and password or your Common Access Card (CAC).
- 2. Select the "Request TA Access" smart link; GAE will run an automatic FTA eligibility check.
- 3. View the "Welcome to VIA" video.
- 4. Select a career goal, degree program, and home school using the VIA decision tool (self-guided).
- 5. Submit your request for approval. The Education Services Specialist will email you when your request has been processed and approved.
- 6. GoArmyEd will prompt you to complete the GoArmyEd Common Application and to sign and submit your FTA Statement of Understanding (SOU) when you "Request TA" to sign up for classes.

***** Please read the <u>FTA Statement of Understanding</u> before digitally signing your acknowledgement. *****

GAE will place a hold on your account if you are ineligible for FTA. A hold is applied to enforce Army FTA policies and regulation. Holds are removed automatically when the issue is resolved. For more information on your hold and steps to resolve the hold, click the My Education section of your GoArmyEd homepage (select the education tab and scroll down for a summary of your hold and steps required to resolve your hold).

Federal Tuition Assistance Request Timelines:

You may request Federal Tuition Assistance (FTA) up to 60 days prior to your class start date <u>up until the day before</u> <u>the class start date</u>; FTA requests are submitted and approved individually on a class-by-class basis.

Each FTA request must be approved prior to the class start date.

If you submit your FTA request <u>less than five business days</u> prior to the class start date <u>and</u> your FTA request is not approved prior to the class start date – the class will not qualify for an exception to policy (counselor error or GoArmyEd error), *regardless of reason*. This five business day window is necessary to provide a buffer to accommodate the potential for unanticipated delays to include (but not limited to) GoArmyEd account holds, resolving a rejected TA Authorization request, inclement weather, or system downtime.



If the TA-approved class is cancelled by the school, you must drop the class through GoArmyEd and request a replacement class. Classes cancelled <u>less than</u> five business days prior to start date must be replaced <u>within</u> five business days of school class cancellation notice.



Request Federal TA and Enroll in a Class

Depending on the GoArmyEd (GAE) school classification (**LOI or Non-LOI**) and the degree you pursue, GAE will present you with one of several enrollment paths. <u>GoArmyEd will determine your path automatically</u> and the Army will pay all approved FTA amounts directly to your school. If you are required to complete the GAE Course Planner, the course planner must be approved prior to requesting FTA.



LOI: Letter of Instruction school Non-LOI: Non-Letter of Instruction school



Did you know... You can request FTA on goarmyed.com up to 60 days prior to the class start date.

STOP

Was your Degree Plan or FTA Authorization Request Rejected?

STOP

Please review the following documentation checklist for degree plan, course schedule, and itemized bill requirements **before** resubmitting your request!



*The Degree Plan is also called the Student Agreement. After completion of 6 federally-funded semester hours at one school or 9 federally-funded semester hours at any school, you must have an approved personalized degree plan on file (<u>in</u> <u>your GAE course planner</u>). Your choices for this requirement are: A Degree Audit printed from your student account (signed & dated by a school official) or an official evaluation signed & dated by a school official (with above requirements).

Upload a document in GoArmyEd (GAE) eFile:

Review each document to ensure it does not contain your Personal Identifiable Information (PII) such as full SSN!



Wait a couple of minutes and then open the document to ensure you can view the document. If <u>you</u> can't open it, <u>we</u> can't open it.

Please do not upload modifiable documents such as Excel or Word documents to your eFile.

Submit a Federal TA Application Request on GoArmyEd:

FTA can only be approved for courses specifically listed on your degree plan -to include electives. If a course is not listed on your degree plan, contact your academic advisor to request an updated degree plan.

Please ensure your **itemized** bill and **detailed** course schedule, for your upcoming term/semester, are uploaded to your GAE eFile. The documents must meet the requirements listed on page 7. These documents are required to complete the FTA request for all <u>Non-LOI schools</u> (see bottom of page 9).

Ensure you review the itemized bill and you understand exactly what your school is charging you for tuition and the various fees. You should know exactly how much your school charges for tuition for a seated class and online class. You should know exactly how much your school is charging you for tuition per semester hour before proceeding (review 'per semester hour' formula at the bottom of page 11).

After you upload your, current semester, itemized bill and course schedule to your GoArmyEd eFile, go back to the GAE home page and select the "Request TA" tab.



	Request FTA Continued				
Your Federal TA request must be approved before the class start date. GoArmyEd will automatically approve all Federal	 From your GoArmyEd homepage, select the "Request TA" button in the Smart Links section. After you complete six semester hours at your home school or 9 semester hours at any school, a pop-up message will appear indicating you are required to complete a Course Planner in GoArmyEd to track your academic progress. Select the "OK" button to continue with the FTA Request process or the "Cancel" button for more information on Course Planners. If the quarterly online Statement of Understanding screen appears, carefully read the information concerning the use of Federal Tuition Assistance (scroll down to enter password and submit). 				
TA Request submitted on or after the class start date as "Soldier-Funded."	Search Enroll LOI my class schedule add Add Classes				
Search my class schedule Add Classes 1. Select classes to add The system has pre-populated your	Enroll My Academics add drop Non-LOI School				
The system has pre-populated your home school. If your at the basic or basic of different school, select the magnifying glass icon to sear additional required fields and select Next. School: *School: *School: *School: *School: *Subject: *Catalog Number: *Start Date: (MM/DD/Y): Next View All TA Requests You are not registered for classe School: You are not registered for classe					



Upload Cost and/or Course Enrollment Verification Information



Information" section. If you found the class you wanted in the search function, the class information is populated based on your search. If you did not use the search function or did not find the class, only the Subject and Catalog number will populate. Select the calendar icon to select and populate the "Start and End Date" fields. Dates must match your class schedule.

	Re	quest FTA Contin	ued
Class Information		V	
Subject:	MATH EX: HIST	*Start Date:	B Fiscal Years
Catalog Nbr:	200 EX: 225	*End Date:	Control Num
Class Section:		Class Title: Into to Cal	Enter the Class
*Instruction Mode:		•	Section.
Upload Cost and/	or Course Enrollment	Verification Information	Enter the Class
	and the second division of the second divisio		Title.
Class Information			
	MTH EX: HIST	*Start Date:	Fiscal Year: Select the
	101 EX: 225	*Start Date:	Control Numb from the
Class Section:		*Class Title:	"Instruction
*Instruction Mode:		•	Mode" drop-down
			menu.
Upload Cost and/or	Course Enrollment Veri	fication Information	
			If the instruction mode is
Class Information			classroom-based,
er Salassa sa		i materia	vou are required
Subject:	MATH EX: HIS		to provide
Catalog Nbri Class Section:	200 EX; 225	Class Title: Into to Ca	additional
*Instruction Mode:		-	information.
-			
Upload Cost and	or Course Enrollment	Verification Information	
		and the second se	sterification Information
Upload Cost and/or 0 *Title	ourse Enrollment Verific	ation Information	Select "Search eFile" and
			select your course schedule
* Description			and itemized bill from your
* Description			
Add Attachment		Search eFile	eFile and attach the files to your FTA application. The
Add Attachment	ription and select "Add Attach a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce	ment" to upload cost verificat	your FTA application. The
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documenta. Pile size i All Personally Identifis Include, but not limite	a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce	ment" to upload cost verificat	
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File ster i All Personally Identific Include, but not limite and medical records.	a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce able Information (PII) must b d to, social security number (ment" to upload cost verificat the file size or zip the file. e removed. PII is any unique k 55N), dete of birth, place of birth	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File size i All Personally Identifis include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having trou button down as you as Help Resource/Geners	a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce able Information (PII) must b d to, social security number (ble opening an attached docu elect the document link or rea il Technology Support pages.	ment" to upload cost verificar the file size or zip the file. e removed. PII is any unique k	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Dead documenta. File size i All Personally Identifis include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having trou button down as you as Help Resource/Genero settings to enable the	a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce able Information (PEI) must b d to, social security number (ble opening an attached docu	ment" to upload cost verificar the file size or zip the file. e removed. PII is any unique is 55%), date of birth, place of birth ment when using Internet Explorer id the Recommended Browser Setting	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File size i All Personally Identifis include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having trou button down as you as Help Resource/Geners	a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce able Information (PII) must b d to, social security number (ble opening an attached docu elect the document link or rea il Technology Support pages.	ment" to upload cost verificar the file size or zip the file. e removed. PII is any unique is 55%), date of birth, place of birth ment when using Internet Explorer id the Recommended Browser Setting	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File stee i All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having brou button down as you as Help Resource/Geners settings to enable the Class Cost	a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce able Information (PEI) must b d to, social security number (ble opening an attached docu elect the document link or rea il Technology Support pages, download of documents.	ment" to upload cost verificat the file size or zip the file. e removed. PII is any unique is 55N), dete of birth, plece of birth smart when using Internet Explorer d the Recommended Browser Setting This will guide you in updating your of	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documenta. File size i All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having trou button down as you as help Resource/Genetic settings to enable the Class Cost • Select	a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce the Information (PEI) must b d to, social security number (ble opening an attached docs elect the document link or rea elect the document link or rea download of documents.	ment" to upload cost verificat the file size or zip the file. e removed. PII is any unique k 55N), date of birth, place of birth ment when using Internet Explorer d the Recommended Browser Setting This will guide you in updating your of r hours, quarter hours, clo	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File atce i All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having brou button down as you as Help Resource/Geners settings to enable the Class Cost Class Cost Select Select	a limited to 4056 KB. Reduce table Information (PEI) must b d to, social security number (ble opening an attached docu elect the document link or real of the document link or real if Technology Support pages, download of documents. Unit Type: Semeste Unit: Must be on yo	ment" to upload cost verificar the file size or zip the file. e removed. PII is any unique is 50%), date of birth, place of birth ment when using Internet Explorer of the Recommended Browser Setting. This will guide you in updating your of the very source of the setting of the setting r hours, quarter hours, close our schedule (example: 3 s	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File size i All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having trou button down as you as Help Resource/Genetic settings to enable the Class Cost • Select • Select • Unit C	bin the information (PEI) must be the information (PEI) must be d to, social security number (ble opening an attached docs let the document link or real of Technology Support pages, download of documents. Unit Type: Semeste Unit: Must be on yo ost: This is the cost y	r hours, quarter hours, clo our schedule (example: 3 s your schedol is charging your	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File attact All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having brou button down as you as Help Resource/Geners settings to enable the Close Cost Close Cost Close Cost Select Select Unit C hour.	Internet to 4006 KB. Reduce the Information (PEI) must b d to, social security number (ble opening an attached docs elect the document link or real of the document link or real of technology Support pages, download of documents. Unit Type: Semeste Unit: Must be on yo ost: This is the cost y Please do not includ	ment" to upload cost verificat the file size or zip the file. a removed. PIL is any unique is 50%), date of birth, place of birth ment when using Internet Deplorer of the Recommended Browser Setting. This will guide you in updating your of bur schedule (example: 3 s your schedule (example: 3 s your school is charging you le fees. Example: If you ar	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File ater i All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having trou button down as you as Help Resource/Geners settings to enable the Class Cost Class Cost Select Select Unit C hour. total t	Unit Type: Semeste Unit: Must be on yo ost: This is the cost y Please do not includ ution, on your itemi	r hours, quarter hours, clo pur schedule (example: 3 s your school is charging you te fees. Example: If you an ized bill, is \$3,000.00, <u>divi</u>	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Deac documenta. File aize i All Personally Identifia include, but not limits and medical records. If you are having trou- button down as you as help Resource/Generation settings to enable the Class Cost Class Cost Select Sen. ormula	Init Type: Semeste Unit Type: Semeste Unit: Must be on yo ost: This is the cost y Please do not includ uition, on your itemit	r hours, quarter hours, clo bur schedule (example: 3 s your school is charging you le fees. Example: If you ar zed bill, is \$3,000.00, <u>divi</u> ster hours (\$3,000.00/12	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File size i All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having too button down as you as help Resource/Generic settings to enable the Class Cost Class Cost Class Cost Select Select Sem. ornula Select Select	Unit Type: Semeste Unit: Must be on yo ost: This is the cost y Please do not includ ution, on your itemi tal number of seme "Calculate Cost" bu	r hours, quarter hours, clo bur schedule (example: 3 s your schedule (example: 1 s your schedule (bur scher the fees. Example: If you ar zed bill, is \$3,000.00, <u>divi</u> ster hours (\$3,000.00/12 tton: Verify the informat	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Desc documents. File size i All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and medical records. If you are having tour button down as you as help Resource/Generic settings to enable the Class Cost Class Cost Select Sem. ormula Select Unit C hour. total t the to Select	Unit Type: Semeste Unit: Must be on yo ost: This is the cost y Please do not includ ution, on your itemi tal number of seme "Calculate Cost" bu	r hours, quarter hours, clo bur schedule (example: 3 s your schedule (example: 1 s your schedule (bur scher the fees. Example: If you ar zed bill, is \$3,000.00, <u>divi</u> ster hours (\$3,000.00/12 tton: Verify the informat	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.
Add Attachment Enter a Title and Deax documenta. File ater All Personally Identifia include, but not limite and readical records. If you are having trou button down as you to help Resource/Generation settings to enable the Class Cost Class Clas	Unit Type: Semester Unit: Must be on your item is a second second second Unit: Must be on you ost: This is the cost y Please do not includ uition, on your itemi tal number of seme "Calculate Cost" bu	r hours, quarter hours, clo bur schedule (example: 3 s your school is charging you le fees. Example: If you ar zed bill, is \$3,000.00, <u>divi</u> ster hours (\$3,000.00/12 tton: Verify the informat r cap, a "Warning: You m	your FTA application. The information on your application must match your itemized bill and course schedule or your application will be rejected.

What happens after I submit my FTA application?

The Texas Army National Guard Education Services Specialist approves almost 4,000 FTA request each fiscal year; many of those request are reviewed more than once due to errors. FTA request are usually processed within 3 business days; request are reviewed in the order they are received. You may check your FTA request status by:

- (1) Logging in to your GAE account.
- (2) Select the "My Education Record."
- (3) Select the "Education" tab.
- (4) Scroll toward the bottom of the page to view previous and pending FTA request.



GoArmyEd will generate an email when your application has been approved or rejected. **If your application is** rejected, the Army Education Services Specialist will provide the reason your application was rejected, the steps/documents required to correct the application, and <u>instructions on how to return your application from a rejected status to a pending status</u>.

If your application is approved for FTA, the "Request Status" will denote "Approved." You will also receive an email from GoArmyEd stating your application has been approved with instructions on how to print your FTA authorization form. It is the Soldier's responsibility to ensure the approved FTA Authorization from is submitted to the school. You are required to provide your school's billing department a copy of the approved FTA Authorization form immediately. This is your proof the Army has approved FTA for your course. Here is an example of the email you will receive when your application is approved.

APPROVED "Dear (Your name), your request to enroll in (Course number - Course Name) at (School name) has been approved. Print the Enrollment Request Form and provide a copy to your school. To print this form, select the "Other Links" Smart Link from your home page, then select the plus icon next to "After you Enroll in a Class" and select the "View All TA Requests" link. Select "Search" and then select one course from the desired term, a new screen will open, and you can put a check in the "Print Select" checkbox for the course you want to print. Select the "Print TA Form" button and a report will run. GoArmyEd will provide a link when the report is done. Select the link to view the report. Print or save the PDF form to your computer. Any TA funds tied to this enrollment request have been updated within your GoArmyEd account. If you selected the self-pay option or enrolled on or after your class start date, you will need to pay all associated course costs directly to your school. Should you decide not to enroll in this class, you can cancel your request on GoArmyEd.com. If you are past the start date, you may drop the class using personal or military drop. You may be responsible for any TA costs invoiced for the dropped class. In addition, you will need to work directly with your school registrar to drop or withdraw from the class at the school. Sincerely, GoArmyEd Student Support Services/Helpdesk. For additional assistance, select the question mark icon located on www.goarmyed.com. NOTE: THIS IS A SYSTEM GENERATED."

Print Your TA Authorization Form:

It is the Soldier's responsibility to email or hand deliver the FTA authorization form to the school billing department. The point of contact name, phone number, and email address is located in section 2C of the TA form. Verify the correct amount has been approved before you provide the FTA form to the school. If the amount is incorrect, contact your TXARNG GoArmyEd Education Services Specialist immediately.

Steps to Print your TA Authorization Form

- (1) Click on "Other Links"
- (2) Select the category "After You Enroll in a Class" (Click on the + mark)
- (3) Click on "View all TA Requests" and then click on "Search"
- (4) Select the course you want to print the TA Authorization Form
- (5) Place a check mark in the appropriate blocks and select the "Print TA Form"
- (6) A message will appear: "Report is Running..."
- (7) Print the TA Authorization Form
- (8) Provide the form to your school's billing department and specifically give it to the GoArmyEd Invoicing Official listed in section (2) of the form. The school point of contact's name, phone number, and email is provided.

"When is the Army Going to Pay My School?"



There are over 3,500 schools (nation-wide) using GoArmyEd. Every school is scheduled to submit their invoice to the Army on a minimum of a quarterly basis. Before a school can submit their invoice to the Army, (4) things must occur.

You may verify if your school has been paid by logging in to your GAE account, select "My Education Record" link then the "Education" tab. Look under the Invoice Status: "Approved" means the Army processed payment to your school.

How will my grade get posted in GAE?

GoArmyEd participating schools are required to post your final grade, for each course, no later than 14 days after the course end date. Although you are not required to provide your semester transcripts to the education center, it is your responsibility to ensure the school post the correct final earned grade to GoArmyEd. If the grade is incorrect, contact your school to request the correction. If the school does not input a final grade, a hold will be placed on your GAE account and you will remain ineligible for FTA until the final grade is posted.

FTA Successful Grade Criteria

Undergraduate: a minimum of a "C" grade (or P if P/F) in each class

Graduate: a minimum of a "B" grade (or P if P/F) in each class

Successful grade criteria is based on degree plan level (i.e., graduate/undergraduate) and not on individual course level (e.g., 100-400, 500>). Example: If a Soldier is enrolled in an undergraduate degree is required to take a graduate level course, a passing grade is "C" or higher. If a Soldier is enrolled in a graduate degree plan and is required to take an undergraduate level course, a passing grade is "B" or higher.

Dropping a Course for State Emergency Duty (SED) or Due to Military Reasons

Before you drop the course at your school or on GAE, you should seriously consider speaking with the TXARNG Education Services Specialist to ensure the withdrawal reason meets the Army's Military Withdrawal definition. If you drop/withdraw from a course after the school's published drop deadline, you may be required to reimburse the Army for the approved tuition amount. A military withdrawal is **"Unanticipated/Unscheduled"** military duties, deployment, emergency leave (includes death in the family), illness/hospitalization, etc. You must clearly demonstrate you could not have foreseen the reasons/events prior to the start of the class. You must also show the dates of the reason/event align with the class dates.

Click form for step-by-step instructions

	for TA Recoupme	ent Waiver –	Withdrawa	l for Militan	(WM) Reaso	ns
FROM: Headqu	arters Army Contin	uing Educatio	n System (HQ ACES)		
TO: Battalion Co	ommander/First LT	C/Reserve C	omponent C	Commander		
SUBJECT: Waiv	ver of TA Recoupm	ent for Colleg	e Course V	Vithdrawal d	ue to Military i	Reasons
	provide documenta funded course(s) d			rify non-com	pletion of Tuit	ion
ESS. A WM req Commander, or f Component, bas	authority for a wai uest for recoupment first LTC in the cha ed on the following paration from Servitation, etc.	nt waiver mus in of commar reasons: Un	t be endors d, or Unit C anticipated	ed by the So commander VUnschedu	oldier's Battali if in the Reser led Military Du	on ve uties or
3. IAW AR 621- Waiver - Withdra	5, this Soldier is re wal for Military (WI	questing your M) Reasons:	review and	endorseme	nt for a TA Re	coupmen
Last Name	First Name	Rank Las	4 of SSN	Sign	ature/Date	
For the following	college course(s):					
School	Course#	Course Tit	-	Start Date	End Date	Cost
				atart Date	Lind Date	
of the events bel 5. Information or request form mu	Is of the reason for ow. Provide a sep procerning payment st be posted to e-F	the unanticip arate sheet if t of the TA de ile in the Solo	ated/unsch additional s bt was sent lier's GoArr	eduled withd space is nee to the Soldi	Irawal, to incl ded: er. An approv within 60 day	ude date: ed s after the
5. Information of request form mu withdrawal and n Non-response or Soldiers will have	ow. Provide a sep	the unanticip arate sheet if lie in the Solo yan Educati sult in recoup jence notice	ated/unsch additional s bt was sent ier's GoAm on Services ment of TA	eduled witho space is nee to the Soldi nyEd record Officer (ES) funds. If re sollection.	Irawal, to incl ded: er. An approv within 60 day O) to cancel th coupment is in	ude date: red s after the he debt. nitiated,
5. Information of request form mu withdrawal and n Non-response or Soldiers will have	ow. Provide a sep oncerning payment st be posted to e-F nust be approved disapproval will re e a 30-day due dilig approval of this TA	the unanticip arate sheet if lie in the Solo yan Educati sult in recoup jence notice	ated/unsch additional s bt was sent ier's GoAm on Services ment of TA	eduled withd pace is nee to the Soldi nyEd record Officer (ES funds, Ifre sollection. /ES	Irawal, to incl ded: er. An approv within 60 day O) to cancel th coupment is in	ude dates ed s after the e debt. nitiated,

Drop a Course for Personal Reasons

All FTA applications are processed on goarmyed.com; therefore, you are required to drop the course by using the goarmyed.com website. You are required to drop the course prior to the school's scheduled drop deadline. If you drop the course at the school, but do not drop the course on the goarmyed.com website, you are still subject to reimburse the Army for the course. If you drop a course for personal reasons, after the school's drop deadline, you are required to reimburse the Army for the amount of approved tuition. If you decide to drop a course that has been approved for FTA, you must drop the course at the school and on GAE.

Change Home School and Degree Name in GAE

Simply log on to your GAE account and select the "Change Degree/School." You are required to complete the Army's "VIA" Decision Tool. If you previously made selections in VIA, your prior selections are saved. You may keep or replace each selection as you progress through VIA or select the completed section you wish to change. Select the name of your new GoArmyEd home school and degree plan and submit for approval. Once you select "Submit," your request is automatically created and sent to your Army Education Center. You will receive an email after your request has been approved.

Student Agreement and Course Planner Requirements

The Course Planner is a planning tool that enables students to identify the remaining required courses to complete their degree. Courses added to the Course Planner <u>must fulfill a requirement</u> <u>identified in an official student agreement/documented degree plan</u>. The **"Course Planner"** smart link will appear on your GoArmyEd homepage if you are required to complete the Course Planner.

GO TO HOME SCREEN - SELECT "COURSE PLANNER" TAB: On the blue and white screen under STUDENT INFORMATION: Verify your home school, degree level, and degree name matches the approved degree plan you received from your school advisor. If you changed your degree plan or school, you will need to complete the VIA Decision Tool and select your new home school and degree name before your course planner is approved.

STUDENT AGREEMENT/DOCUMENTED DEGREE PLAN: If all items match, as stated above, select the "Upload Plan" button to upload your student agreement/degree plan to your Course Planner. Your degree plan must contain the following information:

- Official school name and signed by academic advisor
- Soldier's name (should be printed or typed and legible)
- Degree Program name (for example: BS in Nursing or MS in Management)
- o All courses required for the degree (class subject, number, title, and credit hours)
- o Show all courses completed and all courses remaining to complete degree
- o Specify credit hours per class and total remaining to complete degree
- Uploaded as <u>one document</u> (with all pages); must be complete degree plan

Course Planner

Required after you complete (6) semester hours at your home school or (9) semester hours at any school using FTA.

You must have an approved Degree Plan from the school you are attending.

How to Use the Course Planner: Step-by-Step Instructions

SEMESTER HOURS NEEDED TO GRADUATE: In the box "Units Remaining to Graduate" - put the total number of hours remaining to complete your degree. If your program is 120 semester hours and

you have completed 50 semester hours, than you still need 70 semester hours to complete your degree. Put 70 semester hours in the box.

UNIT TYPE - most schools are semester hours; however, please verify your unit type with your school. Some schools use quarter hours or clock hours. Select the

From your GoArmyEd Homepag under the Smart Links section o		' Smart Link
Smart Links		
Request TA	Change Degree/School	
Course Planner	Withdraw from a Class	
On-Duty Courses	Recoupment-Information	
My Education Record	Student Agreement/Degree Progress Reports	
Other Links		

Note: If you do not see the Course Planner Smart Link you are NOT required to complete Course Planner based on your chosen degree.

drop down arrow and select the unit type.

Click box above for step-by-step tutorial

COURSE PLANNER COURSES: This is where you list the remaining courses to complete your degree requirements. You may list all the courses at once but **you must list** <u>at least 50%</u> of the remaining courses. Please do not list courses you have already completed.

The home school listed on your Student Record will prepopulate in the "School Name" field. Select the "Look up" button to proceed. Carefully view the list and select your home school for a listing of courses offered with that school.

The course planner will automatically direct you to either search the database for your courses or manually enter course information.

If your school uploads courses in GAE, you can search by subject/name then select, "ADD TO PLANNER BOX." <u>Please note</u>: the course planner is for the required courses remaining to graduate. Please do not list courses you have already completed.

Must Include: SUBJECT CATALOG NUMBER COURSE TITLE COURSE LEVEL COURSE USAGE UNIT TYPE & UNITS If your school does not upload your courses in GAE, you must manually fill out all the information requested on the course planner and the information you submit must match your approved degree plan. If the course is not listed on your degree plan, we cannot approve the course in your course planner (this includes electives).

THIS IS VERY IMPORTANT: The course information in your course planner will populate in your FTA request. If this information is incorrect, your FTA request will not be paid. You must select the school each time you enter a course manually. If you enter 12 courses, you will select "school" 12x for 12 course.

The Army Education Services Specialist will send an email to your GAE preferred email account indicating your course planner is approved or rejected. If a course or the degree plan (attached to your course planner) is rejected, the email will include <u>instructions on how to resubmit corrections</u> until your degree plan/course planner is approved. If the course planner is required, you will not be able to request FTA until your Course Planner is "Approved h."

Resolve "Time in Service" Hold: Joint Services Transcript (JST)

The Joint Services Transcript (JST) provides a description of military schooling and work history in civilian language. It serves as a counseling tool for academic and career counselors in advising Service Members and Veterans. The JST serves as an aid in preparing resumes and explaining Army, Coast Guard, Marine Corps, National Guard, and Navy work experience to civilian employers and schools. It also saves time and money by awarding academic credits, which means less tuition to pay and less time spent in the classroom. When you complete a military school or training, you may earn college credit hours toward your degree. You're encouraged to provide your JST to your academic advisor at your school. Your academic advisor will provide an evaluation and determine whether to award you college credits for your military training. The JST is accepted by more than 2,300 colleges and universities. The JST will show the date you completed AIT, OCS or BOLC.

A JST JST Joint Ser	Wen Trendript	🛓 😧 🕄 🧔
Sign In CAC Users If you are currently an active service member of haire a service member of haire a service member of haire a member of a JST account. Login with your CACI -or Non CAC Users ST I language	Register to Use this System If you are prior Army, Coast Guard, Marne Corps, or Navy or do not have access to a Common Access Carl (CAC) maker, Ben BEGISTER for a SIT account. Who's Eligible For JST Transcripts Army, Coast Guard, Marne Corps, and Navy. Active Duty, Reserve and Veterans. How to meteupiest or commons to your JST Transcript How to meteupiest or commons to your JST Transcript How to meteupiest or commons to your JST Transcript How to meteupiest an official transcript Area to strateging Por JST Technical Issues	Important JST Links So Jam, Ed Ann, Cothouse Education Sustem ACE Miller, Code Manne, Const Vointare, Ed Manne, Const Vointare, Ed Many, Calles Program MCPDDP As demin, Institutes MCPDDP As demin, Institutes Defense Activity for Non-Traditional Ed Sig DAVIES Defense Activity for Non-Traditional Ed Sig DAVIES Defense Activity Institutes Manney Compresentate
JST Password JST Password Sign In teapter served?	NETC N644 ATT. J3T Operations Center 6400 Staffey Fried Road Permacolas Frond 32500 Email: <u>Registration and</u> For Amy Access Issues For Amy Access Issues	National Personnel Critter Marx Lidio J. 5. Narra Life is worth living! your inteline. toorstrake. toorstrake.
http	os://jst.doded.mil/smart/signIn.do	Report A Crime

Instructions to access JST:

- 1. Look for "Register to Use this System" at the top of the page and click on the word "REGISTER."
- 2. Complete the eight boxes on the "Registration" page. Write down your username and password. You may want to use your email address as your username.
- 3. At the "Registration Completed" screen, click the "ENTER HERE" link.
- 4. A new page will open with five links across the top. Click on "Transcripts."
- 5. Click on number 1: "Transcript."
- 6. Your transcript should generate.
- 7. Your "Joint Services Transcript" should appear with the Dept. of the Army and American Council on Education logo.
- 8. Verify your AIT, OCS, or BOLC end date are correct.
- 9. Print your JST and save it as a PDF file on your desktop.
- 10. Upload your JST to your GoArmyEd eFile.
- 11. Title the JST document "JST." Open a helpdesk case to remove hold (if applicable).

Reset GAE Password

Scroll down to the GoArmyEd footer. Select the "Change Password" link to update your GoArmyEd password and security questions. Complete the following steps to change your GoArmyEd password:

Home	My Virtual Education	Student Recognition	Earn a Degree or	Programs and Services
Change Password	Center	Graduates	Credential	Academic Testing
Education Centers	Before You Enroll in a Course	Making the Grade	Change Degree Option	Army Personnel Testing
Account Information		Success Stories	Class Schedule	Education Counseling
Technology Support			College Success Resources	FAST
Glossary of Acronyms			Credentialing - COOL	GoArmyEd Course Evaluation
,			GED/High School Completion	Summaries
			Online Training Resources	JST Transcripts
GoArmyEd			Schools and Programs	Kuder Interest Journey
📫 Like 12K			Servicemembers Opportunity	Multi-use Learning Facilities
			Colleges	Program Communities
				Troops to Teachers

- ✓ **STEP 1:** Scroll down to the footer section and elect the **"Change Password"** link.
- ✓ STEP 2: On the Change Password page, enter your "Current Password" and new password in the "New Password" and "Confirm New Password" fields. If you wish to temporarily display your password, select the "Show Password" button.
- STEP 3: If you lost your password answers, you may change your questions/answers now or proceed to click submit to change password. Note: You must completely answer all 3 questions if you decide to change your questions/answers.
- ✓ STEP 4: Select the "Submit" button.
- ✓ STEP 5: GoArmyEd will display a message stating your password was successfully change. You may select "Sign In" or GoArmyEd will redirect you to the GoArmyEd homepage.

GoArmyEd Assistance

Visit the GoArmyEd Assistance Center to search for answers and information about GoArmyEd related topics. Topics are presented in step-by-step instructions and videos. You may also **log in** to GoArmyEd then select the green question mark/clipboard to create a helpdesk case.

ioArmyEd Assistance Center			GoArmyEd Helpdesk Phone Nur	nbers
earch Search by Keyword	View topics of common frequently asked questions.		Monday through Friday: 7:00 a.n Saturday and Sunday: Closed	n. to 7:00 p.m. Eastern Time
Search Advanced Search	Latest Topics	Date updated	Create Helpdesk Case	GAE Helpdesk:
ategories	 Army Civilian/DA Intern - How do I track a Standard Form (SF) 1822 Army Civilian/DA Intern- How do I edit and resubmit an SF 182 that has been returned to me for action? 	Jun 07, 2017 Jun 07, 2017	Search Helpdesk Case	-
Copics cArmyEd	Army Civilian/DA Intern - How do I dropicancel a Standard Form (SF) 1822 Army Civilian/DA Intern - How do I create a Standard Form (SF) 1822 How do I update my Servicing Education Center in my GoArmyEd Student Record?	Jun 07, 2017 Jun 07, 2017 May 05, 2017		1 (800) 817-9990
oArmyEd Assistance	Popular Topics	Views	We solar was solar to check Your Nee solar was solar to any the solar to a	na Manada Casa Jaka Sala Ana
_	Sodiar - New do Lohanger my home school or drogen slav? Sodiar - New do Lohanger All Sodiart, 527 Sodiar - New do Lopolad a Student Agreement/Documented Degree Plan in Course Planner? Sodiar - New do Lopolad a Student Agreement/Documented Degree Plan in Course Planner? Sodiar - New do Lorint an approved TA Request Form? Top Rated Topics Arm_Cruitian/DA Intern_How do Lopola a Standard Form (SF) 1152? Sodiar - New do Linet an approved TA Request Form? Course Planner - New do Linet an approved TA Request Form? Course Planner - New do Linet an approved TA Request Form? Sodiar - New do Linet an approved TA Request Form (SF) 1152? Sodiar - New do Linet an approved TA Request Form (SF) 1152? Sodiar - New do Linet an appeade 2 Sodiar - New do Linet an Appeade 2	26382 20060 11276 11876 11876 Rating	 Standborg Harden Standborg Standb	 La Agenda Tomoradian Service Weils Service Servic

TXARNG Education and Incentives Assistance

For additional information on your TXARNG Education and Incentives benefits, please reference points of contact below, visit our website, or follow us on Facebook:



TXARNG Education and Incentives Assistance				
Education & Incentives OIC	LTC Brian Hildebrand	(512) 782-6996		
Education & Incentives NCOIC	MSG Gerald Lorance	(512) 782-6084		
Education Services Officer	Mrs. Yvette Gonzalez	(512) 782-5505		
Guidance Counselors / GI Bill Managers	SGT Rodriguez / SGT Padamada	(512) 782-1450 / 5045		
State Tuition Assistance Program	Mr. Manuel Flores	(512) 782-5270		
Incentives OIC / Manager	CPT Stringer / SFC Sadiq	(512) 782- 6797 / 5335		
Student Loan Repayment	SGT Andrew Lehman	(512) 782-5878		
Federal Tuition Assistance Manager / GAE	Ms. Consuello Geston	(512) 782-1016		

Higher Education Resource Links

COLLEGE PREPARATION

Find the Right College for You Free Application for Federal Student Aid Free College Tutoring for SM and Dependent Child Explore Careers: Take a free interest inventory Online classes or classroom? Take a survey Texas Hazlewood Approved Schools VA (GI Bill) Approved Schools Education Advocacy for Servicemembers

COLLEGE FUNDING

Apply for TXARNG State Tuition Assistance Program Compare Federal Tuition amounts w/schools Scholarship Search Apply for Texas Hazlewood Act

TEST PREPARATION

SAT, ACT, (AFCT) Skills Prep Military Test Prep CLEP & DSST Prep DANTES Examination Guides Exam Reimbursement (SAT, ACT, GRE) Free Skills Training

🐺 VA EDUCATION

Compare GI Bill Program/Rates Chart Compare GI Bill w/Tuition Rates College Navigator <u>FAFSA</u> <u>Tutor.com</u> <u>O*NET Interest Profiler</u> <u>DANTES Distance Learning Survey</u> <u>Texas Public Institutions</u> <u>WEAMS Institution Search</u> <u>Servicemembers Opportunity College</u>

State Tuition Assistance Program Tuition Assistance (TA) DECIDE Fisher House Scholarship Search Hazlewood Act

March2Success Peterson's Online Basic Skills Courses Peterson's College Level Exam Credits DANTES Testing (SAT, SAT, GRE, etc.) DANTES Exam Reimbursement Army eLearning

GI BILL Comparison Chart GI Bill[®] Comparison Tool